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Chairman’s Report

Dear Shareholders,

On my behalf and the Company’s board of directors, | am pleased to congratulate His Majesty Sultan
Haitham Bin Tarik on His Majesty’s second anniversary of assuming leadership of the Sultanate and
guiding us in the path of progress.

The year 2021 witnessed a gradual and steady recovery of Oman’s economy as the vaccine rollout
gradually restored economic activities, alongside the recovery of the international oil prices.

Despite the continuing challenges posed by the resurgence of Covid-19 through its new variants,
the Sultanate of Oman, under the leadership of His Majesty Haitham bin Tarig, has witnessed an
improvement in financial and monetary indicators, an increase in GDP, and a decline in public
debt, an increase in foreign currency reserves and a decrease in the fiscal deficit, which led to an
improvement in the Sultanate’s rating with credit rating agencies.

Your Company navigated successfully through the challenges posed by the pandemic and ensured
an uninterrupted supply of petroleum products at all times.

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | am pleased to present the 18" Annual Report of your Company,
together with the audited financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2021.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE (RO’000)

2021 2020 Inc /(dec) Inc/(dec)

RO’000 RO’000 RO’000 %

Sales 372,907 333,762 39,145 12%
Cost of Sales (350,067) (313,673) 36,394 12%
Gross profit 22,840 20,089 2,751 14%
Other income 6,317 4,907 1,410 29%
Total expenses (26,397) (24,133) 2,264 9%
Net profit 2,760 863 1,897 220%
Earnings per share (RO) 0.040 0.013 0.027 220%
Book value per share (RO) 0.639 0.599 0.040 7%
Retained earnings (RO’000) 32,792 30,032 2,760 9%
Total equity (RO’000) 44,096 41,336 2,760 7%

HIGHLIGHTS

Total sales during the year 2021 recovered & reached RO 372.9 million (2020: RO 333.8 million),
an increase by RO 39.1 million, i.e., by 12%. The increase in sales is mainly attributed to the partial
recovery of economic activities due to the decreased pandemic effect & the recovery of oil prices.

e As aresult of increased economic activities, net profit increased to RO 2.760 million (2020: RO
0.863 million), i.e., increase by RO 1.897 million (i.e., 220%) over 2020.

e Earnings per share is increased to RO 0.040 in 2021 compared to RO 0.013 in 2020, an increase
by RO 0.027 (i.e. ,220%).

e Book value per share also increased from RO 0.599 in 2020 to RO 0.639 in 2021, a growth of 7%,
as a result of increase in net profit in 2021.

e  Total equity has also increased to RO 44.096 million in 2021 from RO 41.336 million in 2020
registering a growth of 7%.
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SEGMENTS PERFORMANCE

¢ Retails segment:

Foucs on “SMART FILLING STAIONS”

With the growth of cities & young urban society, Retail stations continue to grow and expand. The
Company continue to build new filling stations in areas that have high potential for growth and
expansion.

Customer convenience and digitalization remained Al Maha’s primary focus, and your Company
took various initiatives across the Retail segment to remain the preferred choice for customers. The
Company has made great strides in digitizing most fuel stations and hopes to finish it in early 2023.

During the year, the Company launched the “Fuely” service as a new initiative to take the delivery
of fuel to the doorsteps of the customer. Even though launched to cater to the demands of the B2C
segment, this “First in Oman” initiative has been attractive to the B2B segment also.

e Commercial segment:

Despite the challenges, the commercial sector has emerged as a growth leader in good performance
due to the Company’s customer-centric approach. The Company’s strategy of aligning business with
customer expectations and continuous improvement in operations and efficiency has had tangible
results in terms of business performance.

During the year, the Company also secured major commercial contracts, expanding its client base to
remain a leader in this highly competitive market.

e Aviation segment

The aviation segment has been the worst hit during the continued pandemic period, due to the
restrictions on international travel. These restrictions on international flights still continue to a large
extent, except for the partial resumption of flights to certain countries. As per projections by global
agencies, pre-COVID levels are likely to be reached only by 2024.

e Lubricant segment

Despite the challenging external environment, Al Maha lubricants performed par excellence in the
automotive and industrial segments and gained popularity both in the local & export market.

e NFR (Non-Fuel Retailing) segment continues to be the high priority area. We continue to focus
on redesigning of C Stores, construct / develop Commercial buildings in the fuel outlets to fully
capitalize on the growth opportunity it offers to support our retail business.

The partnership agreement signed with Enhance to replace and manage our existing C Stores with
the popular “Noor Express” shops in our filling station courtyards has already received much public
appreciation and support.

DIVIDEND

In line with our consistent dividend policy of maintaining a sustainable dividend payment, the Board
of Directors has recommended a cash dividend of Bzs 40 per share, representing 40% of share capital,
subject to the approval of the shareholders’ Annual General Meeting.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Our corporate philosophy on Corporate Governance has been to ensure fairness to the Stakeholders
through transparency, full disclosures, empowerment of employees and collective decision making.

The Corporate Governance Report highlighting these endeavors has been incorporated as a separate
section, forming part of the Annual Report.
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SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Your Company is committed to the communities around it and through various CSR programmes.
During the past year, the Company launched many programs within the framework of social
responsibility and supported several charitable institutions and non-profit organisations serving
the country. In addition, the Company immediately responded to assist those affected by cyclone
Shaheen in early October 2021.

HSE

Health, Safety, Security, and Environment are the indispensable constituents of our activities. Your
Company strives to improve personal and process safety by continuous monitoring and effective
management. The target is to achieve zero occupational incidents, and the primary focus is laid on
the Safety Management System.

Your Company has received a trio of certifications from the International Organisation for
Standardisation (ISO) viz.,

1) 1SO 9001 : 2015 certification for Quality Management System,
2) 1SO 14001 : 2015 for Environmental Management System, and
3) ISO 45001 : 2018 for Occupational Health and Safety Management System.

The Company received these prestigious certifications as a result of its commitment to adhering to
the highest international standards of quality, environment, health, and safety in an endeavour to
ensure its consistent and sustainable growth.

FUTURE OUTLOOK

With the increase in global oil prices and positive expectations for GDP growth, reduced restrictions
on movement, and a high rate of immunization against the Covid-19 virus locally and internationally,
reasonable expectations indicate optimism for positive growth of the Company’s business under its
strategy to take advantage of emerging opportunities in the changing business environment.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

On behalf of the Board of Directors and the Executive Management, | take this opportunity, to
express our most sincere gratitude and loyalty to His Majesty Sultan Haitham bin Tariq and for his
efforts towards a prosperous Oman.

We thank the Ministry of Energy and Minerals, the Ministry of Commerce, Industry and Investment
Promotion, OQ Refineries, our shareholders, customers, the officials of the Capital Market Authority,
the Muscat Stock Exchange, and Muscat Clearing & Depository Company for their valuable support
and co-operation. We also appreciate the dedicated and committed service of our staff members.

Dr. Juma Ali Juma Al-Juma
Chairman
14 February 2022
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Our Corporate Governance Philosophy

The Company is committed to implement the Code of Corporate Governance issued by the Capital
Market Authority (CMA) to sustainably maximize shareholder value while ensuring fairness to all
stakeholders: customers, partners, investors, employees, government, and society. Our corporate
governance reflects our value system encompassing our culture, policies and relationships with our
stakeholders.

Board of Directors

The Board of Directors (‘the Board’) is at the core of our corporate governance practice and oversees
how the Management serves and protects the long-term interests of all our stakeholders. We believe
that an active, well-informed, and independent Board is necessary to ensure the highest corporate
governance standards.

The Board’s main responsibilities include:

e Review the strategic plans and operational performance
e Review effectiveness of internal controls

e Approval of business plans and budgets

e Approval of quarterly and annual financial statements

e Approval of policies and procedures

Election of the Board of Directors

Elections of the members of the Board of Directors are carried out in the Annual Ordinary General
Meetings of the Company in accordance with the provisions of the Commercial Companies Law
and the guidelines issued by the Capital Market Authority.

If the office of a director becomes vacant in the period between two annual ordinary general
meetings, the board appoints a temporary director to assume his office until the next ordinary
general meeting in accordance with the provisions of the Commercial Companies Law.

Current Board

The current Board was elected in the Annual Ordinary General Meeting held on 25 March 2019.

As at 31 December 2021, the Board consists of seven members, of which four are independent
directors.

The most important details of the members of the Board of Directors as of December 31, 2021, are
as follows:
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Board Directorships

I\?:) Director’s name Designation Status meetings At:\ec:n“éle d in other SAOG
attended Companies
. . Non-
1) Dr.Juma AliJuma Al-Juma Chairman independent 7 YES
His Highness Sheikh Zayed
2) Bin Sultan Bin Khalifa Deputy ~  Non- 7 YES ;
Chairman independent
Al Nahyan
3) Falsa'l Ali Saleh Al Ahmed Director Independent 5 YES
Al Ali -
. . . Non-
4) Sultan Khalifa Saleh Al-Tai Director . 7 YES
independent -
Saleh Nasser Juma .
5) Al-Araimi Director Independent 7 YES
1) Bank Muscat
0) Brgad'f:: el Director  Independent 7 YES  2) Al Omaniya
Al-Harthi Financial
Services
1) National
Nabil Hamed Zahran Bank of
7) Al-Mahrougqi Director  Independent 2 No Oman
(from 8 September 2021) 2) Oman
Chlorine
Previous member
Dr. Mohammed Ali Al-Qassabi .
1) (until 7 September 2021) Director  Independent 5 YES )
Number of Board meetings in 2021:
The Board held Seven meetings in 2021 as detailed below:
1) 11Jan 2021 2) 22 Feb 2021 3) 28 Apr 2021
4) 27 June 2021 5) 28 July 2021 6) 27 Oct 2021

7) 20 Dec 2021

The intervals between the board meetings are in line with the CMA requirements of a maximum
interval of four months.

Audit Committee

Role of Audit Committee

The Audit Committee Charter defines the duties and responsibilities of the Committee, which are
concisely:

e Ensuring compliance with the CMA regulations and Code of Corporate Governance

e Review quarterly and annual financial statements

e Recommend external audit fees and terms of engagement to the Board of Directors

e Review and approve the annual internal and external audit plans and ensuring that auditors
have full and unrestricted access to all relevant documents and staff
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e Oversight of all audit activities and internal control evaluation

e Review proposed specific transactions with related parties and making recommendations to the
Board

e Conduct any special investigations and report to the Board
The Company has an internal audit function that reports to the Audit Committee.

Composition of Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises a Chairman and two Directors, all of whom are non-executive and
two of them are independent directors. The Committee members are knowledgeable in finance,
industry, and laws and regulations governing SAOG companies.

Audit Committee meetings

The Audit Committee met 10 times in 2021, as detailed below:

1) 8-Feb-21 2) 17 Feb 2021 3) 11 Apr2021
4) 27 Apr 2021 5) 23 Jun 2021 6) 26 Jul 2021
7) 11 Aug 2021 8) 01 Sep 2021 9) 25 Oct 2021

10) 26 Dec 2021

The attendance record of the Audit Committee meetings was as follows:

Sl . , . . Meetings
No Director’s name Designation Status attended
1) Saleh Nasser Juma Al-Araimi Chairman Independent 9
Nabil Hamed Al-Mahrouqi
2) (from 8 September 2021) Member Independent 2
3) Sultan Khalifa Saleh Al-Tai Member Non- independent 10
Previous member
Dr. Mohammed Ali Said Al-Qassabi
) (until 7 September 2021) e ncepEndent £

Executive Committee

Role of Executive Committee

The Executive Committee is delegated the powers and authority to facilitate the smooth running
of the operations of the Company and to provide the Board with a mechanism for considering in-
depth, any issue that the Board considers that requires detailed attention. The Committee’s main
areas of competence are to review the following points:

e Strategic issues

* Investment decisions

e Treasury and liquidity management

e Business plans and budgets

e Major changes in policies and procedures

e Proposals for new business areas

e Progress reviews

e Staff matters

e Other matters referred by the Board to the Committee

10
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Composition of Executive Committee

The Executive Committee comprises two independent directors and two non-independent directors.

Executive Committee meetings

The Executive Committee met 3 times in 2021 as detailed below:

1) 22 Feb 2021 2) 28 Apr2021 3) 27 Oct 2021

The attendance record of the Executive Committee meetings was as follows:

Sl . , . . Meetings
No Director’s name Designation Status attended
His Highness Sheikh Zayed Bin Sultan Bin . Non-
1) Khalifa Al Nahyan eIl independent 3
2) Dr.Juma Ali Juma Al-Juma Member . Non- 3
independent
3) Faisal Ali Saleh Al Ahmed Al Ali Member Independent 1
4) Brigadier Saif Salim Saif Al-Harthi Member Independent 3

Nomination & Remuneration Committee

The Board constituted “Nomination and Remuneration Committee” in 2016 to assist and advise
the Board on the following matters:

1) Establishing remuneration & incentive policy for Directors & Executive Management
2) Defining bonus policy for Executive Management

3) Appointment of skilled persons to the Board & Executive Management

4) Succession planning for Directors & Executive Management

The Remuneration and Nomination Committee comprises a Chairman and three Directors; one is
non-independent and three are independent.

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee met 4 times in 2021 as detailed below:

1) 27Jan 2021 2) 12 Apr 2021 3) 02 Nov 2021 4) 09 Nov 2021

The attendance record of the Committee meetings was as follows:

Sl . , . . Meetings
No Director’s name Designation Status attended
1) Brigadier Saif Salim Saif Al-Harthi Chairman Independent 4
. . Non
2) Sultan Khalifa Saleh Al-Tai Member . 4
independent
Nabil Hamed Al-Mahrouqi
2
! (from 8 September 2021) Ml 2CT e SfpEme S
4) Faisal Ali Saleh Al Ahmed Al Ali Member Independent 4

1
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Previous member

Dr. Mohammed Ali Said Al-Qassabi

1
) (until 7 September 2021)

Member Independent 2

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

During the year 2021, several projects benefitting Society were undertaken. As a responsible
corporate citizen, we responded to the need of the hour by contributing to various social responsibility
activities, including donations to those affected by cyclone Shaheen in early October 2021.

Remuneration of Directors

Sitting fees are paid to the Board and committee members to take account of the additional work
involved. The details of sitting fees are shown below:

e Board Meetings-RO 800 per meeting.

e Audit Committee Meetings-RO 600 per meeting.

e Executive Committee Meetings-RO 600 per meeting.

¢ Nomination & Remuneration Committee sitting fee - RO 600 per meeting.

Details of total sitting fees for the year are given below:

1) Total sitting fees of the Board of Directors meetings RO 35,600
2) Total sitting fees of the Audit Committee meetings RO 15,600
3) Total sitting fees of the Executive Committee meetings RO 5,400
4) Total sitting fees of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee meetings RO 8,400

Total sitting fees RO 65,000

The details of amounts paid to / proposed for directors for 2021 are shown below:

NS(I)- Director’s name Slt;l':;i Rem:rr\:f:tsi‘g: To;?)l
RO RO
1) Dr.Juma AliJuma Al-Juma 7,400 23,571 30,971
2) ::SNTE\I;::SS Sheikh Zayed Bin Sultan Bin Khalifa 7,400 23571 30,971
3) Faisal Ali Saleh Al Ahmed Al Ali 6,400 23,571 29,971
4) Brigadier Saif Salim Saif Al-Harthi 9,800 23,571 33,371
5) Saleh Nasser Juma Al -Araimi 10,000 23,571 33,571
6) Sultan Khalifa Saleh Al-Tai 10,000 23,571 33,571
7) Nabil Hamed Al-Mahrougqi (from 8 September 2021) 4,000 7,428 11,428
Previous member
1) ar.;m(;hsae?{zr?dbg'zs;ﬂ)A' Qassabi 10,000 16,146 26,146
Total (RO) 65,000 165,000 230,000

12
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The total sitting fees for each director and the total sitting fees and remuneration for all directors are
within the provisions of the Articles of Association and the Commercial Companies Law (18/2019).

Shareholders

The shareholders who owned 5% or more of the share capital of the Company at 31 December 2021
were as follows:

Shareholder’s name % of shareholding  Number of shares held
1) ABS Lubricants 40 % 27,600,000
2) Civil Service Employees Pension Fund 13.2% 9,081,781
3) Public Authority for Social Insurance 9.5% 6,567,909
4) Ministry of Defense Pension Fund 5.3 % 3,683,930
5) Mohammed Hamed Mohammed Al Harthy 53% 3,680,000
Total 733 % 50,613,620

Distribution of shareholding

Category of shares Number of shareholders Number of shares % of shareholding
Up to 5,000 988 1,614,175 2.3%
5,001 - 30,000 373 2,978,010 4.3%
30,001 -50,000 29 1,200,397 1.7%
50,001 - 100,000 17 1,155,611 1.7%
100,001 - 400,000 16 2,908,452 4.2%
Above 400,000 14 59,143,355 85.7%
Total 1,437 69,000,000 100%

Dividend policy

The Board of Directors will maintain a sustainable dividend policy which will address the financial
strength of the Company, support its long-term strategies and at the same time, will pay a reasonable
dividend to the shareholders and in compliance with the Commercial Companies Law (18/2019).

Communication with shareholders

The annual and quarterly financial statements are published in two newspapers (Arabic and English).

All the information relating to the Company, news and the financial results are available in the
Company’s website and in Muscat Securities Market website. The Annual General Meeting offers a
further opportunity for the directors to meet with shareholders.

The Annual Report includes the Management Discussions and Analysis Report.

13
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The Company did not have any GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any other convertible warrants as on 31
December 2021 and hence the likely impact on equity is Nil.

Market price data

The monthly market prices during 2021 are shown in the following table:

R, High Low Close
RO/ share RO/ share RO/ share
January 0.680 0.582 0.586
February 0.644 0.550 0.586
March 0.644 0.546 0.550
April 0.570 0.546 0.570
May 0.580 0.550 0.550
June 0.720 0.600 0.700
July 0.780 0.700 0.780
August 0.780 0.740 0.768
September 0.768 0.672 0.700
October 0.732 0.680 0.696
November 0.696 0.660 0.672
December 0.692 0.608 0.692

Performance in comparison to MSX services sector index

14
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Statutory auditors

EY is a global leader in assurance, tax, transaction and advisory services. EY is committed to doing its
part in building a better working world. The insights and quality services which EY delivers help build
trust and confidence in the capital markets and in economies the world over.

The MENA practice of EY has been operating in the region since 1923 and employs over 7,500
professionals. EY has been operating in Oman since 1974 and is a leading professional services
firm in the country. EY MENA forms part of EY’s EMEIA practice, with over 4,853 partners and
approximately 132,455 professionals. Globally, EY operates in more than 150 countries and employs
312,000 professionals in 700 offices. Please visit ey.com for more information about EY.

Details of non-compliance with the provisions of Corporate Governance

During the year 2021, the Capital Market Authority attributed a violation to the Company related to
the delay in immediate disclosure of the lawsuit filed by Al Maha against Simplex Infra Structure LLC,
which Al Maha lately disclosed on July 29, 2021. After providing the relevant justifications, the CMA
offered a conciliation by paying a total amount of RO 1,625. The Company has accepted the principle
of conciliation in accordance with the provisions of Article (317) of the Executive Regulations of the
Capital Market Law.

The Company complies with the provisions of the Code of Corporate Governance. Therefore, there
are no penalties imposed on the company by the CMA or by the MSX during the past three years.

Acknowledgement by the Board of Directors

1) The Board of Directors is responsible for the approval of the financial statements related
to the activities of the Company and the results of its business, presented thereto by the
executive management, which reveal the actual financial status of the Company.

2) The Board has overall responsibility for the Company’s internal controls which are designed to
manage rather than eliminate risk to which the Company is exposed and provides reasonable
rather than absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

3) The Board of Directors has reviewed the internal controls and is satisfied that appropriate
controls are in place to implement the Code’s requirements. The Board of Directors believes
to the best of its knowledge that there are no material issues which might affect the continuity
of the Company’s operations in the financial year which shall end on 31 December 2022.

Chairman Director

15
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Management Discussions and Analysis
BUSINESS & OBJECTIVES

The Company is primarily engaged in the marketing & distribution of petroleum products viz.
Gasoline (M91 & M95), diesel, aviation fuel, kerosene & lubricants.

The Company operates with the following objectives:

1) Improving shareholders net-worth and payment of consistent and fair returns

2) Increasing the overall market share in all business areas & effectively addressing the prevailing
competition

3) Improving the corporate image through better customer service and brand recognition

4) Recruiting and empowering Omani youths

5) Total commitment to the protection of Health, Safety, and Environment (HSE)

BUSINESS OPERATIONS

The Company operates its business through the following segments:

1) Retail sales

2) Commercial sales

3) Other sales (including Aviation & lubricant sales).

The performance of these major segments is discussed below:

1) Retail sales

The retail sales segment is the main revenue driver, accounting for almost 73% of our business in
2021.

New fuel stations were opened during the year, bringing the total number of service stations to 238.
In addition, the Company opened new convenience stores and other service centers to enhance
the retail sector’s business, develop non-fuel revenues, and meet the increasing demand for these
services.

The Retail sales witnessed a remarkable improvement this year compared to the previous year. Sales
volume has increased by 5% due to the gradual return to economic activity after easing the strict
preventive measures to control the spread of the Covid-19 pandamic.

2) Commercial sales

The Commercial segment is the second-largest business segment accounting for about 22% of the
total revenuein 2021. Diesel fuel is the main product of this sector, and this sector is very competitive
in the prices offered to customers and requires high efficiency in delivery.

The sales volume of this sector has increased by 5% compared to the previous year due to the increase
in demand for the Company’s products by some major customers. However, despite improving this
sector in general, the construction and infrastructure sector is still declining since the previous year.

In late 2021, the Company won a new strategic project with one of the major companies operating
in the oil and gas sector.

16
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3) Aviation sales

The aviation sales volume witnessed a decrease during the year 2021 by 16% compared to 2020,
mainly due to the restrictions on international travel. The sales volume of this sector is expected to
increase with the return of airport traffic and the increase in the number of passengers.

4) Lubricants

The lubricant business has shown positive growth due to improved marketing strategies. Besides,
the Company started expanding its footprints in other countries.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

2021 2020 Inc /(dec) Inc/(dec)
RO’000 RO’000 RO’000 %
Sales 372,907 333,762 39,145 12%
Cost of Sales (350,067) (313,673) 36,394 12%
Gross profit 22,840 20,089 2,751 14%
Other income 6,317 4,907 1,410 29%
Total expenses (26,397) (24,133) 2,264 9%
Net profit 2,760 863 1,897 220%
Earnings per share (RO) 0.040 0.013 0.027 220%
Book value per share (RO) 0.639 0.599 0.040 7%
Retained earnings (RO’000) 32,792 30,032 2,760 9%
Total equity (RO'000) 44,096 41,336 2,760 7%

Sales have increased to RO 372.9 million in 2021 (2020: RO 333.8 million), an increase of RO 39.1
million (12%). The increase in sales is mainly attributed to the increase the retail and commercial
sales volume as well as the increase in domestic fuel prices.

Expenditures increased by RO 2.264 million (9%) mainly due to the increase in transportation costs,
finance costs, employees costs, provisions for claims and expected credit losses, and income tax. The
increase in finance income offset the increase in finance costs.

Net profit after tax increased to RO 2.760 million in 2021 (2020: RO 0.863 million), an increase of RO
1.897 million (220%) mainly due to the increase in sales and other income.

Return on equity increased in 2021 compared with 2020 due to an increase in net profit in 2021.

17
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Below is a chart which indicates the net profit, dividend and net equity since 2016:

SE

Al Maha always accords the highest priority to care for the environment and its protection.

We are committed to conducting business with a strong environmental conscience, ensuring
sustainable development, safe work places and enrichment of the quality of life of its employees,
customers and the community.

Compliance with safety systems & procedures and environmental laws is monitored at the unit,
division, and corporate levels. The HSE activities of the Company are reviewed periodically in Board
meetings. During the year safety audits were carried out at various offices and locations and various
training programs were conducted across the Corporation covering safety-related topics.

HUMAN RESOURCES

People form the greatest resource in Al Maha and investment in learning and development is given
utmost importance. Throughout the year, we implemented series of training and learning programs
for employees based on their individual needs and organizational requirements in order to enhance
their skills.

Our Omanisation level was 88.4% and the number of employees stood at 328 at the end of 2021.

FUTURE OUTLOOK

With the increase in global oil prices and positive expectations for GDP growth, reduced restrictions
on movement, and a high rate of immunization against the Covid-19 virus locally and internationally,
reasonable expectations indicate optimism for positive growth of the Company’s business under its
strategy to take advantage of emerging opportunities in the changing business environment.
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Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2021
Statement of financial position

Notes 2021 2020
RO’000 RO’000

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 10 28,859 30,366
Investment properties 11 541 588
Right -of- use assets 12 4,058 4,072
Contract assets-non current 13 3,353 3,708
Deferred tax assets 9 2,722 2,387
Total non-current assets 39,533 41,121
Current assets
Inventories 14 3,878 3,383
Trade and other receivables 15 58,428 42,301
Contract assets - current 13 1,952 1,159
Bank balances and cash 16 32,906 41,234
Total current assets 97,164 88,077
TOTAL ASSETS 136,697 129,198
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Share capital 17 6,900 6,900
Legal reserve 18 2,300 2,300
Special reserve 19 2,104 2,104
Retained earnings 32,792 30,032
Total equity 44,096 41,336
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Lease liabilities — non current 12 3,174 2,946
Contract liabilities — non current 13 785 2,222
Employees’ end of service benefits 20 199 211
Total non-current liabilities 4,158 5,379
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 21 43,062 34,003
Short term borrowings 22 42,000 44,731
Lease liabilities — current 12 1,156 1,329
Contract liabilities — current 13 1,343 2,032
Income tax payable 9 882 388
Total current liabilities 88,443 82,483
TOTAL LIABILITIES 92,601 87,862
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 136,697 129,198
Net assets per share (RO) 26 0.639 0.599

These financial statements were approved and authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on 14
February 2022 and signed on their behalf by:

CHAIRMAN DIRECTOR

The attached notes 1 to 32 form part of these financial statements.
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Statement of comprehensive income

Notes 2021 2020

RO’000 RO’000

Revenue 6 372,907 333,762
Cost of sales (350,067) (313,673)
GROSS PROFIT 22,840 20,089
Other income 4 4,332 3,991
Operating and administration expenses 7 (23,567) (22,165)
OPERATING PROFIT 3,605 1,915
Finance income 1,985 916
Finance costs 5 (2,283) (1,810)
PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX 3,307 1,021
Income tax expense 9 (547) (158)
PROFIT AND TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR 2,760 863
Basic and diluted earnings per share (RO) 27 0.040 0.013

The attached notes 1 to 32 form part of these financial statements.
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Statement of changes in equity

Share Legal Special Retained Total
capital reserve reserve earnings
RO’000 RO’000 RO’000 RO’000 RO’000
At 1 January 2020 6,900 2,300 2,104 33,999 45,303
Profit and total comprehensive income for i i i 363 363
the year
Dividend paid (note 23) - - - (4,830) (4,830)
At 31 December 2020 6,900 2,300 2,104 30,032 41,336
Profit and total comprehensive income for i i i 2,760 2,760
the year
At 31 December 2021 6,900 2,300 2,104 32,792 44,096

The attached notes 1 to 32 form part of these financial statements.
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Statement of cash flows

2021 2020

Notes  RO’000 RO’000
OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Profit before income tax: 3,307 1,021
Adjustments for:
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 10 3,664 3,894
Depreciation on right of use assets 12 1,191 1,131
Depreciation on investment properties 11 47 47
Accruals for employees' end of service benefits 20 36 52
Allowance for expected credit loss 7 1,095 769
Amortisation of contract assets 13 210 82
Provision for slow moving inventory 14 98 50
(Gain) /loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment (48) 4
Rent concessions received during the year - (228)
Finance income (1,985) (916)
Finance costs 5 2,283 1,810
Operating cash flows before working capital changes 9,898 7,716
Inventories (593) 1,088
Trade and other receivables (16,417) 11,933
Trade and other payables 6,933 (6,883)
Operating cash flows after working capital changes (179) 13,854
Employees end of service benefits paid 20 (48) (174)
Income taxes paid 9 (388) (917)
Net cash flows (used in) / from operating activities (615) 12,763
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of property, plant and equipment 10 (3,610) (3,407)
Proceeds from short term deposit 10,000 10,000
Finance income 1,985 916
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 48 22
Net cash flows from investing activities 8,423 7,531
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividend paid 23 - (4,830)
Payment of principal portion of lease liabilities 12 (1,371) (1,083)
Finance costs paid 5 (2,034) (1,568)
Proceeds from short-term borrowings 22 590,714 414,231
Repayment of short-term borrowings 22  (593,445) (424,532)
Net cash flows used in financing activities (6,136) (17,782)
Net increase in Bank balances and cash 1,672 2,512
Bank balances and cash at the beginning of the year 31,234 28,722
Bank balances and cash at the end of the year 16 32,906 31,234

Note: During the year, certain capital work in progress have been transferred to contract assets at a

net book value of RO 1,453 (2020: RO nil) (note 10).

The attached notes 1 to 32 form part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the financial statements

2.1

2.2

Legal status and principal activities

Al Maha Petroleum Products Marketing Company SAOG (“the Company”) is a joint stock
company registered under the Commercial Companies Law, of the Sultanate of Oman. The
principal activity of the Company is the marketing and distribution of petroleum products. The
principal place of business is located at Ghala, Sultanate of Oman.

Basis of preparation and summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies are summarised below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation
a. Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standard (IFRS) and the requirements of the Commercial Companies Law of
the Sultanate of Oman, as amended and the Capital Market Authority. They have been
prepared under the assumption that the Company operates on going concern basis (note
3.7).

b. Basis of Measurement
The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost convention.

c. Presentation and functional currency

These financial statements are presented in Rial Omani (RO), which is the Company’s
functional currency.

d. Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and in
any future periods affected. In particular, information about significant areas of estimation
uncertainty and critical judgements in applying accounting policies that have the most
significant effect on the amount recognised in the financial statements are described in
note 3.

Following are the significant accounting policies adopted by the Company:

Revenue from contracts with customers
The Company’s principal activity is marketing and selling fuel and petroleum products.

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services
are transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The Company has
generally concluded that it is the principal in its revenue arrangements because it typically
controls the goods or services before transferring them to the customer.
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2.
2.2

2.3

2.4

Basis of preparation and summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

Sale of fuel and petroleum products

Revenue from sale of Fuel and petroleum products is recognised at the point in time whe
control of the asset is transferred to the customer, generally on delivery of the products. The
Company’s terms of sales require amounts to be paid on average of 30 -90 days from the date
of delivery.

The Company considers whether there are other promises in the contract that are separate
performance obligations to which a portion of the transaction price needs to be allocated. In
determining the transaction price for the sale of products, the Company considers the effects
of variable consideration. If the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the
Company estimates the amount of consideration to which it will be entitled in exchange for
transferring the goods to the customer. The variable consideration is estimated at contract
inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in the
amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty with

the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

Volume Rebate

The Company applies either the most likely amount method or the expected value method to
estimate the variable consideration in the contract. The selected method that best predicts
the amount of variable consideration is primarily driven by the number of volume thresholds
containedinthe contract. The most likelyamountis used for those contracts with asingle volume
threshold, while the expected value method is used for those with more than one volume
threshold. The Company provides retrospective volume rebates to certain customers once the
quantity of products purchased during the period exceeds a threshold specified in the contract.
Rebates are offset against amounts payable by the customer. To estimate the variable
consideration for the future expected rebates, the Company applies the most likely amount
method for contracts with a single-volume.

Directors’ remuneration

The Company follows the Commercial Companies Law, and other relevant directives issued
by CMA, in regard to determination of the amount to be paid as Directors’ remuneration.
Directors’ remuneration is charged to the statement of comprehensive income in the year to
which it relates.

Employees’ end of service benefits

End of service benefits are accrued in accordance with the terms of employment of the
Company’s employees at the reporting date, having regard to the requirements of the Oman
Labor Law and its amendments. Employee entitlements to annual leave and leave passage are
recognised when they accrue to employees and an accrual is made for the estimated liability
arising as a result of services rendered by employees up to the reporting date. These accruals
are included in current liabilities, while that relating to end of service benefits is disclosed as a
non-current liability.

Contributions to a defined contribution retirement plan and occupational hazard insurance for
Omani employees in accordance with the Omani Social Insurances Law of 1991 are recognised

as an expense in the statement of comprehensive income as incurred.
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2.5

2.6

2.7

Basis of preparation and summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a
qualifying asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended
use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the respective assets. All other borrowing costs
are expensed in the period they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that
an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Income tax

Taxation is provided for based on relevant tax laws of the Sultanate of Oman in which the
Company operates.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates
enacted or substantially enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in
respect of previous years.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary differences at the
reporting date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to
the period when the asset is realised, or the liability is settled, based on laws that have been
enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and carry-forward
of unused tax assets and unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary differences and the carry-forward of
unused tax assets and unused tax losses can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all
or part of the deferred income tax asset to be utilised. Income tax relating to items recognised
directly in equity is recognised in equity and not in the statement of comprehensive income.

Property, plant and equipment

Recognition and measurement

Iltems of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses if any. Expenditure incurred to replace a component of an item of property,
plant and equipment that is accounted for separately, including major inspection and overhaul
expenditure, is capitalised. When significant parts of property, plant and equipment are
required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based on their
specific useful lives. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in
the carrying amount of the property, plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition
criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in statement of
comprehensive income as incurred.
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2.

Basis of preparation and summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.7 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

2.8

Subsequent expenditure

The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the
carrying amount of an item if it is probable that future economic benefits embodied within
the part will flow to the Company and the cost can be measured reliably. The costs of the
day-to-day servicing of property, plant and equipment are recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income, as incurred.

Depreciation

Depreciation is charged to the statement of comprehensive income on a straight-line basis
over the estimated useful lives of the property, plant and equipment as follows:

Years
Buildings and roads 7-20
Plant and equipment 3-20
Motor vehicles 3-7
Furnitures and fixtures 3-20

Work-in-progress is stated at cost less impairment. When the underlying asset is available for
use in its intended condition and location, work-in-progress is transferred to the appropriate
property, plant and equipment category and depreciated in accordance with depreciation
policy of the Company.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each
reporting date. The useful lives of property, plant and equipment is lower than lease term.

Where the carrying amount of an asset is greater than its estimated recoverable amount it is
written down immediately to its recoverable amount.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is
derecognised upon disposal (i.e., at the date the recipient obtains control) or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Gains and losses on disposals of
property, plant and equipment are determined by reference to their carrying amounts and are
taken into account in determining operating profit.

Investment properties

Property held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation and not yet occupied by the
Company has been classified as investment property. Investment property is accounted
for under cost model and are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs and is
accordingly stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. The cost of investment property is
its purchase price together with any incidental expenses. The cost of investment property is
written down to residual value in equal installments over the estimated uselful lives of 20
years.

Where the carrying amount of an investment property is greater than its estimated recoverable
amount, it is written down immediately to its recoverable amount.

Rental income on investment property and repairs and maintenance expenses relating to the
investment property are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.
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2.

2.9

2.10

2.11

2.12

Basis of preparation and summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided
to the chief operating decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible
for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments, has been
identified as the Chief Executive Officer who manages the Company on a day-to-day basis, as
per the directives given by the board of directors that makes strategic decisions.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Net realisable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated cost of completion
and estimated cost necessary to make the sale.

The cost of inventories is determined using the first-in-first-out method and includes
expenditure incurred in acquiring the inventories and bringing them to their existing location
and condition.

Provision is made where necessary for obsolete, slow moving and defective items, based on
management’s assessment.

Contract balances

Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to
the customer. If the Company performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before
the customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for
the earned consideration that is conditional.

Contract costs

Contract costsis the costincurred to fulfil the contract and the relating assets must be amortised
on a systematic basis that is consistent with the Company’s transfer of the related goods or
services to the customer unless there are indications of impairment based on management’s
estimation of recoverability of contract costs.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which
the Company has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the
customer. If a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or services
to the customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is made or the payment
is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company
performs under the contract.

Trade and other receivables

Areceivable represents the Company’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional
(i.e., only the passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is due).
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2.

Basis of preparation and summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.13 Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised
cost, fair value through other comprehensive income (OCl), and fair value through profit or
loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s
contractual cash flow characteristics and the Company’s business model for managing them.
With the exception of trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component
or for which the Company has applied the practical expedient, the Company initially measures
a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value
through OCI, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are ‘solely payments of principal and
interest (SPPI)’ on the principal amount outstanding. This assessment is referred to as the SPPI
test and is performed at an instrument level. The Company’s business model for managing
financial assets refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows.
The business model determines whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash
flows, selling the financial assets, or both. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market
place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company
commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:
e Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

e Financial assets at fair value through OCI with recycling of cumulative gains and losses
(debt instruments)

e Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI with no recycling of cumulative gains
and losses upon derecognition (equity instruments)

e Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

This category is the most relevant to the Company. The Company measures financial assets at
amortised cost if both of the following conditions are met:

e The financial asset is held within a business model with the objective to hold financial
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows; and

e The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest
(EIR) method and are subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in statement of
comprehensive income when the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired. The Company’s
financial assets at amortised cost includes trade receivables and Bank balances and cash.
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2.

Basis of preparation and summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.13 Financial assets (continued)

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar
financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the Company’s statement of
financial position) when:

e The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

e The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has
assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay
to a third party under a’ pass -through ‘arrangement ;and either) a (the Company has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset ,or) b (the Company has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset ,but has
transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered
into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risks
and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the
risks and rewards of the asset ,nor transferred control of the asset ,the Company continues to
recognise the transferred asset to the extent of its continuing involvement.

In that case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is
measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount
of consideration that the Company could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company recognises an allowance for Expected Credit Losses (ECLs) for all debt instruments
not held at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the
Company expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original effective interest
rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other
credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses
that result from default events that are possible within the next 12-months (a 12-month ECL).
For those credit exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining
life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).
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2.13

2.14

2.15

Basis of preparation and summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial assets (continued)
Derecognition (continued)

For trade receivables covering under IFRS 15, the Company applies a simplified approach in
calculating ECLs. Therefore, the Company does not track changes in credit risk, but instead
recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Company has
established a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment. For
finance lease receivable, the company applies general approach in calculating the ECL and is
determined by using the probability of default (PD), exposure at default (EAD) and loss given
default (LGD). The Company considers a financial asset in default when contractual payments
are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases, the Company may also consider a financial
asset to be in default when internal or external information indicates that the Company is
unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account any
credit enhancements held by the Company. A financial asset is written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Company’s non-financial assets other than inventories and
deferred tax asset are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any
indication of impairment. If any such indications exist, then the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or cash generating unit
exceeds its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. In assessing the value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specified

to the asset. Impairment losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at each reporting
date for any indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is
reversed if there has been a change in estimates used to determine the recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or
amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

Allfinancial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings
and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs. The Company’s financial liabilities
include trade and other payables and bank borrowings.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss:
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading
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2.15

2.16

2.17

Basis of preparation and summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial liabilities (continued)

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:
and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of
repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments
entered into by the Company that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge
relationships as defined by IFRS 9. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held
for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments. Gains or losses on
liabilities held for trading are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are
designated at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in IFRS 9 is satisfied. The
Company has not designated any financial liability at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings):

This is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, interest-bearing
loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
(EIR) method. The effective interest method is the method of calculating the amortised cost
of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments through the
expected life of the financial liability to the net carrying amount on initial recognition. Gains
and losses are recognised in statement of comprehensive income when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance
costs in the statement of comprehensive income.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts
is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.

Cash and bank balances

Cash and bank balances comprise cash in bank balances and short-term deposits with an
original maturity of three months or less, that are readily convertible to a known amount of
cash and subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Provisions

A provision is recognised in the statement of financial position when the Company has a legal
or constructive obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the amount of
the obligation can be made. Provision for environment remediation, resulting from past
operationsor events, is recognised in the period in which an obligation to a third party arises
and the amount can be reliably estimated. Measurement of liabilities is based on current legal
requirements and existing technology.
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2.18

2.19

2.20

Notes to the financial statements

Basis of preparation and summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Provisions (continued)

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to
settle the present obligation at reporting date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. Where a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated
to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows.
Where some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be
recovered from third parties, the receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that
reimbursement will be received, and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

Dividends

Dividends are recognised as a liability in the period in which the dividends are approved by the
Company’s shareholders. Dividends for the year that are approved after the reporting date are
dealt with as a non-adjusting event after the reporting date.

Trade and other payables

Liabilities are recognised for amounts to be paid in the future for goods or services received,
whether billed by the supplier or not.

Fair values

A number of the Company‘s accounting policies and disclosures require the determination
of fair value ,for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities .Fair values have been
determined for measurement and/or disclosure purposes based on a number of accounting
policies and methods .Where applicable ,information about the assumptions made in
determining fair values is disclosed in the notes specific to that asset or liability.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date .The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either:

e In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

e In the absence of a principal market ,in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market

participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants
act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s
ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling
it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.
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2.20

2.21

Basis of preparation and summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Fair values (continued)

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for
which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements
are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

e Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

e Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable

e Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements at fair value on a
recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in
the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant
to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting year.

Foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at its functional
currency spot rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition. Monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot
rates of exchange at the reporting date. Foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in
the statement of comprehensive income.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at
the date when the fair value is determined.

The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated
in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e.,
translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in OCI or profit or
loss are also recognised in OCI or profit or loss, respectively).

2.22 Current/non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in statement of financial position based on current/
non-current classification.

An asset as current when it is:

e  Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

e  Held primarily for the purpose of trading

e Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

e Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability
for at least twelve months after the reporting period.
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2.22 Current/non-current classification (continued)

All other assets are classified as non-current.
A liability is current when:

e ltis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle
e |tis held primarily for the purpose of trading
e Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

e There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve

months after the reporting period.

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

2.23 Leases

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That
is, if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time

in exchange for consideration.

Company as a lessee

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except
for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities
to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying

assets.

i) Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the
date the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less
any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of
lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised,
initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date
less any lease incentives received. Right of use assets are subject to impairment. Right-of-
use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the

estimated useful lives of the assets, as follows:

Years
Land 5-10

ii) Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured
at the present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments
include fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected

to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise
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Basis of preparation and summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.23 Leases (continued)

2.24

price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Company and payments
of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Company exercising the
option to terminate. The variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are
recognised as expense in the period on which the event or condition that triggers the payment
occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental
borrowing rate at the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease
is not readily determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is
increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In
addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a
change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments
resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change
in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

iii) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of
machinery and equipment (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from
the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). Lease payments on short-
term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.

Company as a lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income arising is accounted
for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is included in revenue in the statement of
statement of comprehensive income due to its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased
asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents
are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned.

New and amended standards and interpretations to IFRS

The Company applied for the first-time certain standards and amendments, which are
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021 (unless otherwise stated).
The Company has not early adopted any other standard, interpretation or amendment that
has been issued but is not yet effective.

e Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2: Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4
and IFRS 16:
The amendments provide temporary reliefs which address the financial reporting effects when

an interbank offered rate (IBOR) is replaced with an alternative nearly risk-free interest rate
(RFR).
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2.24 New and amended standards and interpretations to IFRS (continued)

The amendments include the following practical expedients:

- A practical expedient to require contractual changes, or changes to cash flows that are
directly required by the reform, to be treated as changes to a floating interest rate,

equivalent to a movement in a market rate of interest

- Permit changes required by IBOR reform to be made to hedge designations and hedge

documentation without the hedging relationship being discontinued

- Provide temporary relief to entities from having to meet the separately identifiable

requirement when an RFR instrument is designated as a hedge of a risk component

These amendments had no impact on the financial statements of the Company .The Company

intends to use the practical expedients in future periods if they become applicable.

e Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 June 2021 Amendments to IFRS 16

On 28 May 2020, the IASB issued Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions - amendment to
IFRS 16 Leases. The amendments provide relief to lessees from applying IFRS 16 guidance
on lease modification accounting for rent concessions arising as a direct consequence of
the Covid-19 pandemic. As a practical expedient, a lessee may elect not to assess whether a
Covid-19 related rent concession from a lessor is a lease modification. A lessee that makes this
election accounts for any change in lease payments resulting from the Covid-19 related rent
concession the same way it would account for the change under IFRS 16, if the change were

not a lease modification.

The amendment was intended to apply until 30 June ,2021 but as the impact of the Covid19-
pandemic is continuing ,on 31 March ,2021 the IASB extended the period of application of
the practical expedient to 30 June .2022 The amendment applies to annual reporting periods
beginning on or after 1 April .2021 However ,the Company has not received Covid-19-related
rent concessions ,but plans to apply the practical expedient if it becomes applicable within

allowed period of application.

2.25 Standards issued but not yet effective

The new and amended standards and interpretations that are issued, but not yet effective, up to
the date of issuance of the Company’s financial statements are disclosed below. The Company
intends to adopt these new and amended standards and interpretations, if applicable, when

they become effective.

e |FRS 17 Insurance Contracts

In May 2017, the IASB issued IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts (IFRS 17), a comprehensive new
accounting standard for insurance contracts covering recognition and measurement,
presentation and disclosure. Once effective, IFRS 17 will replace IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts
(IFRS 4) that was issued in 2005. IFRS 17 applies to all types of insurance contracts (i.e., life,
non-life, direct insurance and re-insurance), regardless of the type of entities that issue them,
as well as to certain guarantees and financial instruments with discretionary participation

features. A few scope exceptions will apply. The overall objective of IFRS 17 is to provide an
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Basis of preparation and summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.25 Standards issued but not yet effective (continued)

accounting model for insurance contracts that is more useful and consistent for insurers. In
contrast to the requirements in IFRS 4, which are largely based on grandfathering previous
local accounting policies, IFRS 17 provides a comprehensive model for insurance contracts,
covering all relevant accounting aspects.

The core of IFRS 17 is the general model ,supplemented by:

e A specific adaptation for contracts with direct participation features (the variable fee
approach)

e A simplified approach (the premium allocation approach) mainly for short-duration
contracts

IFRS 17 is effective for reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023, with comparative
figures required. Early application is permitted, provided the entity also applies IFRS 9 and IFRS
15 on or before the date it first applies IFRS 17. This standard is not applicable to the Company.

e Amendments to IAS 1: Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current

In January 2020, the IASB issued amendments to paragraphs 69 to 76 of IAS 1 to specify the
requirements for classifying liabilities as current or non-current. The amendments clarify:

- What is meant by a right to defer settlement
- That a right to defer must exist at the end of the reporting period

- That classification is unaffected by the likelihood that an entity will exercise its deferral
right

- That only if an embedded derivative in a convertible liability is itself an equity instrument
would the terms of a liability not impact its classification

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023 and must be applied retrospectively. The Company is currently assessing the impact the
amendments will have on current practice and whether existing loan agreements may require
renegotiation.

e Reference to the Conceptual Framework — Amendments to IFRS 3

In May 2020, the IASB issued Amendments to IFRS 3 Business Combinations - Reference to
the Conceptual Framework. The amendments are intended to replace a reference to the
Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements, issued in 1989,
with a reference to the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting issued in March 2018
without significantly changing its requirements.

The Board also added an exception to the recognition principle of IFRS 3 to avoid the issue of
potential ‘day 2’ gains or losses arising for liabilities and contingent liabilities that would be
within the scope of IAS 37 or IFRIC 21 Levies, if incurred separately.

At the same time, the Board decided to clarify existing guidance in IFRS 3 for contingent assets
that would not be affected by replacing the reference to the Framework for the Preparation
and Presentation of Financial Statements. The amendments are effective for annual reporting
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022 and apply prospectively.
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2.25 Standards issued but not yet effective (continued)

e Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use — Amendments to IAS 16

In May 2020, the IASB issued amendments on IAS 16,Property, Plant and Equipment —
Proceeds before Intended Use, which prohibits entities deducting from the cost of an item of
property, plant and equipment, any proceeds from selling items produced while bringing that
asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by management. Instead, an entity recognises the proceeds from selling such items,
and the costs of producing those items, in statement of comprehensive income.

The amendment is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January
2022 and must be applied retrospectively to items of property, plant and equipment made
available for use on or after the beginning of the earliest period presented when the entity
first applies the amendment. The amendments are not expected to have a material impact on
the Company.

® Onerous Contracts — Costs of Fulfilling a Contract — Amendments to IAS 37

In May 2020, the IASB issued amendments to IAS 37 to specify which costs an entity needs
to include when assessing whether a contract is onerous or loss-making. The amendments
apply a “directly related cost approach”. The costs that relate directly to a contract to provide
goods or services include both incremental costs and an allocation of costs directly related to
contract activities General and administrative costs do not relate directly to a contract and are
excluded unless they are explicitly chargeable to the counterparty under the contract.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January
2022. The Company will apply these amendments to contracts for which it has not yet fulfilled
all its obligations at the beginning of the annual reporting period in which it first applies the
amendments.

e |FRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards — Subsidiary as a
first-time adopter

As part of its 2018-2020 annual improvements to IFRS standards process, the IASB issued an
amendment to IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards. The
amendment permits a subsidiary that elects to apply paragraph D16(a) of IFRS 1 to measure
cumulative translation differences using the amounts reported by the parent, based on the
parent’s date of transition to IFRS. This amendment is also applied to an associate or joint
venture that elects to apply paragraph D16(a) of IFRS 1.

The amendment is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January2022

with earlier adoption permitted.

e |[FRS 9 Financial Instruments — Fees in the “10 per cent’ test for derecognition of financial
liabilities

As part of its 2018-2020 annual improvements to IFRS standards process the IASB issued

amendment to IFRS 9. The amendment clarifies the fees that an entity includes when assessing
whether the terms of a new or modified financial liability are substantially different from the
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2.25 Standards issued but not yet effective (continued)

terms of the original financial liability. These fees include only those paid or received between
the borrower and the lender, including fees paid or received by either the borrower or lender
on the other’s behalf. An entity applies the amendment to financial liabilities that are modified
or exchanged on or after the beginning of the annual reporting period in which the entity first
applies the amendment.

The amendment is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January
2022 with earlier adoption permitted. The Company will apply the amendments to financial
liabilities that are modified or exchanged on or after the beginning of the annual reporting
period in which the entity first applies the amendment. The amendments are not expected to
have a material impact on the Company.

e |AS 41 Agriculture — Taxation in fair value measurements

As part of its 2018-2020 annual improvements to IFRS standards process the IASB issued
amendment to IAS 41 Agriculture. The amendment removes the requirement in paragraph
22 of IAS 41 that entities exclude cash flows for taxation when measuring the fair value of
assets within the scope of IAS 41. An entity applies the amendment prospectively to fair value
measurements on or after the beginning of the first annual reporting period beginning on or
after 1 January 2022 with earlier adoption permitted. The amendments are not expected to
have a material impact on the Company.

e Definition of Accounting Estimates - Amendments to IAS 8

In February 2021, the IASB issued amendments to IAS 8, in which it introduces a definition of
‘accounting estimates’. The amendments clarify the distinction between changes in accounting
estimates and changes in accounting policies and the correction of errors.

Also, they clarify how entities use measurement techniques and inputs to develop accounting
estimates. The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1
January 2023 and apply to changes in accounting policies and changes in accounting estimates
that occur on or after the start of that period. Earlier application is permitted as long as this fact
is disclosed. The amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the Company.

e Disclosure of Accounting Policies - Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2

In February 2021, the IASB issued amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2 Making
Materiality Judgements, in which it provides guidance and examples to help entities apply
materiality judgements to accounting policy disclosures. The amendments aim to help entities
provide accounting policy disclosures that are more useful by replacing the requirement for
entities to disclose their ‘significant’ accounting policies with a requirement to disclose their
‘material’ accounting policies and adding guidance on how entities apply the concept of
materiality in making decisions about accounting policy disclosures.

The amendments to IAS 1 are applicable for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023 with earlier application permitted. Since the amendments to the Practice Statement 2
provide non-mandatory guidance on the application of the definition of material to accounting
policy information, an effective date for these amendments is not necessary.
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Basis of preparation and summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

The Company is currently assessing the impact of the amendments to determine the impact
they will have on the Company’s accounting policy disclosures.

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgment in the
process of applying the Company’s accounting policies. The Company makes estimates and
assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results.

The effects of COVID-19 have resulted in certain judgements and estimates being significant in
the current period. This is due to uncertainty introduced by the effects of the pandemic.

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and
other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under
the circumstances. The areas requiring a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements are set out below.

Estimates
Provision for expected credit losses of trade receivables and other provisions

The Company uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade receivables. The provision
rates are based on days past due for groupings of various customer segments that have similar
loss patterns.

The provision matrix is initially based on the Company’s historical observed default rates. The
Company calibrates the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-
looking information. For instance, if forecast economic conditions (i.e., gross domestic product)
are expected to deteriorate over the next year which can lead to an increased number of
defaults in the manufacturing sector, the historical default rates are adjusted. At every
reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-
looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation between historical observed default rates, forecast economic
conditions and ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in
circumstances and of forecast economic conditions. The Company’s historical credit loss
experience and forecast of economic conditions may also not be representative of customer’s
actual default in the future.

At the reporting date, gross trade receivable were RO 66,883 thousand (2020:RO 49,682
thousand), and the allowance for expected credit losses was RO 9,767 thousand (2020: RO
8,685 thousand).

Other provisions is recognised for expected claims if any based on management past experience
and expectation that these cost might be incurred in the next financial year.
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3.3

3.4

3.5

Critical accounting estimates and judgements (continued)
Provision for expected credit losses of trade receivables and other provisions (continued)

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Company’s management determines the estimated useful lives of its property, plant and
equipmentfor calculating depreciation. The calculation of useful livesis based on management’s
assessment of various factors such as the operating cycles, the maintenance programs, and
normal wear and tear using its best estimates.

Taxes

Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation of tax regulations and the amount
and timing of future taxable income. Given the wide range of business relationships and
nature of existing contractual agreements, differences arising between the actual results
and the assumptions made, or future changes to such assumptions, could necessitate future
adjustments to tax income and expense already recorded.

The Company establishes provisions, based on reasonable estimates, for possible consequences
of finalization of tax assessments. The amount of such provisions is based on various factors,
such as experience of previous tax assessments and differing interpretations of tax regulations
by the taxable entity and the responsible tax authority.

Leases - Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Company cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it
uses its incremental borrowing rate (IBR) to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of
interest that the Company would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar
security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a
similar economic environment. The IBR therefore reflects what the Company ‘would have to
pay’, which requires estimation when no observable rates are available or when they need to
be adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions of the lease. The Company estimates the IBR
using observable inputs (such as market interest rates) when available and is required to make
certain entity-specific estimates.

Net realisable value of inventories

Inventories are held at the lower of cost and net realisable value. When inventories become
old or obsolete, an estimate is made of their net realisable value. For individually significant
amounts this estimation is performed on an individual basis. Amounts which are not individually
significant, but which are old or obsolete, are assessed collectively and a provision applied
according to the inventory type and the degree of ageing or obsolescence, based on historical
selling prices.

At the reporting date, gross petroleum products and raw materials were RO 4,081 thousand
(2020: RO 3,488 thousand), with provisions for old and obsolete inventories of RO 203 thousand
(2020: RO 105 thousand). Any difference between the amounts actually realised in future
periods and the amounts expected will be recognised in the statement of comprehensive
income.
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3.7

3.8

Critical accounting estimates and judgements (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its
recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in
use. The fair value less costs of disposal calculation is based on available data from binding
sales transactions, conducted at arm’s length, for similar assets or observable market prices
less incremental costs of disposing of the asset.

The value in use calculation is based on a DCF model. The cash flows are derived from the
budget for the next five years and do not include restructuring activities that the Company is
not yet committed to or significant future investments that will enhance the performance of
the assets of the CGU being tested. The recoverable amount is sensitive to the discount rate
used for the DCF model as well as the expected future cash-inflows and the growth rate used
for extrapolation purposes. These estimates are most relevant to right of use and property,
plant and equipment recognised by the Company.

Judgements
Going concern

The Company’s management has made an assessment of the Company’s ability to continue as
a going concern and is satisfied that the Company has the resources to continue in business
for the foreseeable future. Furthermore, the management is not aware of any material
uncertainties that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. Therefore, the financial statements continue to be prepared on the going concern
basis.

Significant judgement in determining the lease term of contracts with renewal and
termination options — Company as lessee

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together
with any periods covered by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be
exercised, or any periods covered by an option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain
not to be exercised.

The Company has the option, under some of its leases to lease the assets for additional terms.
The Company applies judgement in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain to exercise the
option to renew. That is, it considers all relevant factors that create an economic incentive for
it to exercise the renewal. After the commencement date, the Company reassesses the lease
term if there is a significant event or change in circumstances that is within its control and
affects its ability to exercise (or not to exercise) the option to renew or to terminate (e.g., a
change in business strategy, construction of significant leasehold improvements or significant
customisation to the leased asset).
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4, Other income

2021 2020

RO’000 RO’000

Reimbursement of transportation costs 2,256 2,239
Reimbursement of manpower costs 638 663
Rental income from filing stations and others 465 503
Reversal of earlier year excess accruals 359 82
Tankers rental income 243 28
Rental income from investment properties (note 11) 107 121
Rent concession - 228
Others 264 127
4,332 3,991

5. Finance costs

2021 2020

RO’000 RO’000

Interest on short term borrowings 1,854 1,568
Interest on contract liabilities 180 -
Interest on lease liabilities (note 12) 249 242
2,283 1,810

6. Revenue

2021 2020

RO’000 RO’000

Revenue from sale of goods 274,796 243,332
Revenue from contract with customers 98,111 90,430

372,907 333,762

Type of sales

Retail 271,919 241,769
Commercial 80,562 72,025
Others 20,426 19,968

372,907 333,762

Geographical market
Domestic market 372,907 333,762

Timing of revenue recognition

Goods transferred at a point in time 372,907 333,762
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7. Operating and administration expenses

2021 2020

RO’000 RO’000

Employee costs (note 8) 5,829 5,406
Transportation costs 4,249 3,803
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment (note 10) 3,664 3,894
Filling stations operating expenses 2,346 2,299
Maintenance expenses 1,299 1,722
Depreciation on right of use assets (note 12) 1,191 1,131
Allowance for expected credit losses (note 13,15 and 16) 1,095 769
License fees 1,032 999
Technical fees 420 450
Provision against claims (note 28) 400 -
Bank charges 393 213
Legal and Consultancy expenses 257 108
Directors’ remuneration and sitting fees (note 24) 230 51
Rent and utilities 228 329
Amortization of contract assets (note 13) 210 82
Marketing expenses 206 101
Municipal fees and taxes 112 112
Allowance for slow moving inventory (note 14) 98 50
Corporate Social Responsibility expenses 67 229
Depreciation on investment properties (note 11) 47 a7
Others 194 370
23,567 22,165
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8. Employee costs

Employee costs included in operating and administration expenses (note 7) comprise:

2021 2020

RO’000 RO’000

Wages, salaries and other benefits 5,367 4,944
Contributions to defined contribution retirement plan 426 410

End of service benefits (note 20) 36 52
5,829 5,406

9. Income tax

2021 2020

RO’000 RO’000

Income tax expense comprises of the following:

Current taxation charge:

Current tax expense 882 388

Deferred taxation:

Deferred tax for the year (335) (230)

547 158

The Company is liable to income tax in accordance with the income tax law of the Sultanate of
Oman at the enacted tax rate of 15% on taxable income. For the purpose of determining the
tax expense for the year, the accounting profit has been adjusted for tax purposes relating to
both income and expense items. After giving effect to these adjustments, the average effective
tax rate is estimated to be 24.70% (2020: 38.46%).

Tax provision movement is as follows:
2021 2020
RO’000 RO’000

At 1 January 388 917
Income tax expense for the year 882 388
Paid during the year (388) (917)
At 31 December 882 388
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9. Income tax (continued)

The following is a reconciliation of income taxes calculated on accounting profits at the

applicable tax rate with the income tax expense for the year:

2021 2020

RO’000 RO’000

Accounting profit before tax 3,307 1,021

Tax on accounting profit before tax at 15% (2020: 15%) 496 153
Add tax effect of:

Non-deductible expenses 386 235

Tax charge for the year 882 388

The Company’s tax assessments for the years 2018, 2019 and 2020 have not yet been assessed
by Oman taxation authorities. The Management consider that the amount of additional taxes,
if any, that may become payable on finalisation of assessment of the open tax years would not
be significant to the Company’s financial position at 31 December 2021.

Deferred income taxes are calculated on all temporary differences under the liability method

using a principal tax rate of 15% (2020: 15%).

The deferred tax asset recognised in the statement of financial position is attributable to the

following:

At  Charge for At
1 January the year 31 December
RO’000 RO’000 RO’000

2021
Provision for obsolete inventory 16 15 31
Provision for impairment 1,327 196 1,523
Other provisions 20 59 79
Depreciation 960 88 1,048
IFRS 16 adjustment 64 (23) 41
Deferred tax asset at 15% 2,387 335 2,722
At  Charge for At
1 January the year 31 December
RO’000 RO’000 RO’000

2020
Provision for obsolete inventory 9 7 16
Provision for impairment 1,246 81 1,327
Other provisions 20 - 20
Depreciation 861 99 960
IFRS 16 adjustment 21 43 64
Deferred tax asset at 15% 2,157 230 2,387
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10.

(i)

11.

12.

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Property, plant and equipment include filling station assets with a carrying value of RO 24.2
million (2020: RO 21.2 million). These assets are constructed and commissioned on filling
station sites leased for periods not exceeding 25 years. Lease rentals for sites managed by
the Company are agreed for periods varying from five to ten years. In certain cases where the
filling station assets cost is shared between the Company and site owner, only the cost borne
by the Company is recognised as property, plant and equipment.

Investment properties

Year 2021 Freehold land Buildings Total
RO’000 RO’000 RO’000

Cost

At 1 January and at 31 December 238 943 1,181

Depreciation

At 1 January 2021 - 593 593
Charge for the year - a7 a7
At 31 December 2021 - 640 640
At 31 December 2021 238 303 541
At 31 December 2020 238 350 588

a) The rental income during the year from the investment properties amounted to RO 107
thousand (2020 — RO 121 thousand) (note 4).

b) Atthe end of the reporting year, the Company has assessed if there are any indicators for
impairment of investment property, especially considering the impact of the COVID 19
pandemic, on the real estate sector in the Sultanate of Oman.

c) Atthe end of the reporting year, the fair values of the investment properties amounted
to RO 1,453 thousand (2020 — RO 1,741 thousand) based on valuation undertaken by
professional valuers. The Management has estimated the recoverable amount to be more
than the carrying value, and accordingly concluded no impairment loss has arisen for the
year.

Leases

The Company has lease contracts for various land on which their filling station ,depots and
office operates .The Company enters into leasing arrangements for filling stations at various
locations across the Sultanate of Oman .The lease terms are typically between five and ten

years .The Company’s obligations under its leases are secured by the lessor’s title to the leased
assets.

The Company also has certain leases with lease terms of 12 months or less and leases with low
value .The Company applies the’ short-term lease ‘and’ lease of low-value assets ‘recognition
exemptions for these leases.
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12. Leases (continued)

Set out below are the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets recognised and the movements

during the year:

2021 2020

RO’000 RO’000

At 1 January 4,072 3,515
Additions during the year 1,175 1,688
Re-measurements / adjustments 174 -
Deletions (172) -
Depreciation for the year (note 7) (1,191) (1,2312)
At 31 December 4,058 4,072

Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities and the movements during the year:

2021 2020
RO’000 RO’000
At 1 January 4,275 3,656
Additions during the year 1,175 1,688
Re-measurements / adjustments 230 -
Deletions (181) -
Accretion of interest (note 5) 249 242
Payments (1,418) (1,311)
At 31 December 4,330 4,275
Current 1,156 1,329
Non-current 3,174 2,946
The following are the amounts recognised in statement of comprehensive income:
2021 2020
RO’000 RO’000
Depreciation on right of use assets (note 7) 1,191 1,131
Interest expense on lease liabilities (note 5) 249 242
Expense relating to short-term leases/low value assets 354 354
1,794 1,727
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12. Leases (continued)

Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities:

1 January 31 December

2021 Cashflows Others 2021

RO’000 RO’000 RO’000 RO’000

Lease liabilities 4,275 (1,371) 1,426 4,330

1 January 31 December

2020 Cashflows Others 2020

RO’000 RO’000 RO’000 RO’000

Lease liabilities 3,656 (1,083) 1,702 4,275
13. Contract balances

2021 2020

RO’000 RO’000

Trade receivables (note 15) 57,165 41,038

Contract assets (note a) 5,305 4,867

Contract liabilities (note b) 2,128 4,254

a) Contract assets at the end of the reporting period comprises the following:

Year 2021 Contract Contract Total
assets costs

RO’000 RO’000 RO’000

At 1 January 2021 846 4,047 4,893
Additions during the year 11 - 11
Discounting impact - (284) (284)
Transfers from CWIP (note 10) 1,453 - 1,453
Amortisation during the year (note 7) - (210) (210)
Settled during the year (528) - (528)

1,782 3,553 5,335
Less: allowance for expected credit losses (10) (20) (30)
At 31 December 2021 1,772 3,533 5,305
Current portion of contract balances 1,772 180 1,952
Non-current portion of contract balances - 3,353 3,353
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13. Contract balances (continued)

Year 2020 Contract Contract Total
assets costs

RO’000 RO’000 RO’000
At 1 January 2020 897 129 1,026
Additions during the year 61 4,000 4,061
Amortisation during the year (note 7) - (82) (82)
Settled during the year (112) - (122)
At 31 December 2020 846 4,047 4,893
Less: allowance for expected credit losses (5) (22) (26)
At 31 December 2020 841 4,026 4,867
Current portion of contract balances 841 318 1,159
Non-current portion of contract balances - 3,708 3,708

(i)

Contractassets atthe end of the reporting year represent revenue earned from the contracts
with the customers that include construction of filling stations as receipt of consideration
is conditional on successful completion of performance obligation .Upon completion of
obligation and acceptance by the customer ,the amounts recognized as contract assets are
reclassified to trade receivables.

(ii) Contract costs comprise of the following:

Initial costs of obtaining a contract consists of incremental costs incurred towards the
development of assets for the client which involves implementation and subsequent
services to assets.

Costs to fulfil a contract consists of costs relating directly towards a customer contract
which will generate or enhance the resources of the Company, which in turn will enable
the Company in satisfying the performance obligations as a part of the contract.

b) Contract liabilities includes a contract for a period of three years starting from September
2020 for a total amount of RO 4 million which is payable in monthly instalment of RO
111,111 each. As of 31 December 2021, Contract liabilities amounted to RO 2,128 thousand
(2020: RO 4,254 thousand). Amounts due within one year have been classified as part of
current liabilities.

14. Inventories
2021 2020
RO’000 RO’000

Petroleum products 3,147 2,563

Fuel cards 18 41

General stores and consumables 916 884

4,081 3,488

Provision for slow moving inventories (203) (105)

3,878 3,383
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14,

15.

Inventories (continued)
Movement in the provision for slow moving inventories is as follows:

2021 2020

RO 000 RO 000

At 1 January 105 55

Provided during the year (note 7) 98 50

At 31 December 203 105
Trade and other receivables

2021 2020

RO’000 RO’000

Trade receivables 66,883 49,682

Receivables from related parties (note 24) 49 41

Less: allowance for expected credit loss (9,767) (8,685)

Trade and related party receivables, net of impairment loss 57,165 41,038

Prepayments 631 620

Accrued income 2 12

Staff receivables 92 36

Other receivables 538 595

58,428 42,301

As at 31 December 2021, trade receivables of RO 9,767 thousand (2020 — RO 8,685 thousand)
were impaired and provided against. Movements in the allowance for expected credit loss is
as follows:

Movement in the allowance for expected credit loss is as follows:

2021 2020

RO’000 RO’000

At 1 January 8,685 8,075
Provided during the year (note 7) 1,082 610
At 31 December 9,767 8,685

The amounts are considered to be due within 90 days from the date of invoice for all customers
and the vast majority are unsecured. Unimpaired receivables are expected, on the basis of
past experience, to be fully recoverable.

The other classes within trade and other receivables do not contain impaired assets.
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17.

18.

Bank balances and cash

2021 2020

RO’000 RO’000

Cash at bank (a) 32,692 31,308
Deposits - 10,000
Less: Allowance for expected credit loss (b) (142) (133)
32,550 41,175

Cash in hand 356 59
32,906 41,234

Less: Deposits - (10,000)
Bank balances and cash 32,906 31,234

a) Bank balances and cash include call deposits which earn interest at commercial rates
(2020 — same terms).

b) Movement in the allowance for expected credit loss is as follows:

2021 2020

RO’000 RO’000

At 1 January 133 -
Provided during the year (note 7) 9 133
At 31 December 142 133

Share Capital

The authorized share capital comprises 85 million shares of RO 0.100 each (31 December 2020:
85 million of RO 0.100 each)

At 31 December 2021, the issued and fully paid up share capital comprised 69 million shares
of RO 0.100 each (31 December 2020: 69 million shares of RO 0.100 each).

The details of shareholders who own 10% or more of the Company’s share capital are as
follows:

2021 2020

% No. of shares % No. of shares

ABS Lubricants 40 27,600,000 40 27,600,000
Civil Service Employees Pension Fund 13.2 9,081,781 13.2 9,081,781

Legal reserve

Commercial Companies Law promulgated by the Royal Decree No. 18/2019 (the Commercial
Companies Law of the Sultanate of Oman), as amended requires that 10% of a Company’s
net profit be transferred to a non-distributable legal reserve until the amount of legal reserve
becomes equal to at least one-third of the Company’s issued share capital. Since the amount
of legal reserve has exceeded one-third of the Company’s share capital, no further transfers
have been made during the year .This reserve is not available for distribution.
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19.

20.

21.

22.

Special reserve

The Company had established special reserve in prior years to cover against any losses from

unforeseen contingencies.

Employees’ end of service benefits

2021 2020

RO’000 RO’000

At 1 January 211 333

Charge for the year (note 8) 36 52

Paid during the year (48) (174)

At 31 December 199 211
Trade and other payables

2021 2020

RO’000 RO’000

Trade payables 37,150 28,133

Accrued expenses 3,322 3,019

Advance from customers 710 1,355

Other payables 1,880 1,496

43,062 34,003

Short-term borrowings

The carrying amount of the Company’s short-term loan is denominated in Rial Omani. The
short-term loanis unsecured, carries interest at a commercial rate. The Company has adequate
facilities with local banks to repay / rollover the loan within 12 months to meet its ongoing
business requirements. Interest will be paid based on the maturity date.

Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities:

1 January 31December

2021 Cashflows 2021

RO’000 RO’000 RO’000

Short term loan 44,731 (2,731) 42,000
1 January 31 December

2020 Cashflows 2020

RO’000 RO’000 RO’000

Short term loan 55,032 (10,301) 44,731
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23. Dividends paid and proposed

Dividends paid

During the year no dividend was paid related to the year 2020 (2020: 0.070 per share amounting
to RO 4.830 million were paid).

Proposed dividend

The Board of Directors has proposed a cash dividend of RO 0.040 per share amounting to RO
2.760 million for the year ended 31 December 2021, which is subject to the approval of the
shareholders at Annual General Meeting to be held on 09 March 2022.

24. Related party transactions

The Company has entered into transactions with members of the board of directors and
members of the key management personnel of the Company. Transactions with related parties
are considered by the board of directors to be at normal commercial terms and are as follows:

2021 2020
RO’000 RO’000
Transactions with other entities related to Directors:

Revenue 290 229

Transactions with Directors:

Directors> remuneration and sitting fees (note 7) 230 51

Operating lease payment for a filling station owned by a director 24 14
254 65

At 31 December 2021, there were no transactions with shareholders holding 10% or more
interest in the Company (2020: nil). Amounts due from related parties are interest free and
on normal credit terms (2020 — same terms). Amount due from related parties are disclosed
in note 15.

Compensation of key management personnel
The remuneration of key management personnel during the year were as follows:

2021 2020

RO’000 RO’000

Short-term benefits 483 403
Employees» pension and end of service benefits 21 23
504 426

25. Financial risk management
25.1 Financial risk factors

The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks including the effects of changes
in market risk (including foreign exchange risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity
risk. The Company’s overall risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of
financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the financial performance
of the Company. Risk management is carried out by management under policies approved by
the Board of Directors.
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25.

25.2
25.2.1

25.2.2

25.3

Financial risk management (continued)

Market risk
Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk arises when future commercial transactions or recognised assets or
liabilities are denominated in a currency that is not the entity’s functional currency. The
Company is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from currency exposures primarily with
respect to US dollars. As the Company’s commercial transactions are primarily in foreign
currencies pegged to Rial Omani, the management has not taken any forward contracts. Since
most of the foreign currency transactions are either in US Dollars or in currencies linked to
US Dollar, management believes that should these currencies weaken or strengthen against
the Rial Omani, there would be an insignificant or no impact on the post tax profits.

Interest rate risk

The Company’s interest rate risk arises from bank borrowings and bank deposits. The
Company analyses its interest rate exposure on a regular basis and reassesses the source
of borrowings and renegotiates interest rates at terms favourable to the Company. The
Company limits interest rate risk on bank deposits by monitoring changes in interest rates.
Management has estimated the effect on profit for the year due to increase or decrease in
interest rates to be insignificant.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument
fails to meet its contractual obligations and arises principally from cash and cash equivalents,
as well as credit exposures to customers. The Company has a credit policy in place and
exposure to credit risk is monitored on an on-going basis. Credit evaluations are performed on
all customers requiring credit over a certain amount. The Company requires bank guarantees
on higher credit risk customers. The Company does not require collateral in respect of all
other financial assets.

The Company only deals with commercial banks in Oman with good ratings. Management
does not expect any of its counter parties to fail to meet its obligations.

Concentration of credit risk arises when a number of counter-parties are engaged in similar
business activities, or activities in the same geographic region, or have similar economic
features that would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected
by changes in economic, political or other conditions. Concentrations of credit risk indicate
the relative sensitivity of the Company’s performance to developments affecting a particular
industry or geographical location.

The Company has significant concentrations of credit risk with the Government sector. At
31 December 2021, Government organisations in Oman accounted for 40% (2020 - 40%)
of the outstanding trade accounts receivables. At 31 December 2021, there were no other
significant concentrations of credit risk.

Credit risk on other financial assets, including cash and cash equivalents arises from the risk
of default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amount of
these balances.
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25.

Financial risk management (continued)

25.3 Credit risk (continued)

Cash and bank balances are placed with reputed financial institutions in the Sultanate of
Oman.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class
of financial assets as follows:

2021 2020

RO’000 RO’000

Trade receivables 66,883 49,682
Bank balances and cash 32,906 31,234
99,789 80,916

Trade receivables and contract assets

The Company has a credit policy in place for trade receivables and exposure to credit risk is
monitored on an ongoing basis. Credit evaluations are performed on all customers requiring
credit over a certain amount. In response to the COVID -19 pandemic, the Management
has also evaluated credit to customers in sectors and regions impacted significantly by the
pandemic and re-assessed the credit limits accordingly.

Expected credit losses (ECL)

The Company applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring ECL which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all trade receivables and contract assets. The Company derives
its expected credit loss rates using a payment profile of sales and the corresponding historical
credit losses experienced within this period. The historical rates are then adjusted to reflect
current and forward-looking information on macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of the
customers to settle the receivables. The Company has identified the changes in government
policies and volatility of oil prices to be the most relevant factors, and accordingly adjusts
the historical loss rates based on expected changes in these factors. On that basis, the loss
allowance was determined as follows for trade receivables and contract assets:

Trade receivables

Days past due

31-180
31 December 2021 Contract Current < 30 days days > 180 days Total
assets RO’000 RO’000 RO’000 RO’000 RO’000
Expected credit loss rate 0.56% 0.50% 0.76% 4.30% 83.59% 14.59%
Gross carrying amount 5,335 36,432 9,391 10,257 10,851 66,932
Expected credit loss 30 183 71 441 9,071 9,767
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25.
25.3

25.4

Financial risk management (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

Trade receivables

Days past due

31 December 2020 Contract Current < 30 days S dlafg > 180 days Total

assets RO’000 RO’000 RO’000 RO’000 RO’000
Expected credit loss rate 0.53%  0.55% 0.84% 1.38% 52.87% 17.48%
Gross carrying amount 4,893 23,304 5,988 4,415 15,975 49,682
Expected credit loss 26 128 50 61 8,446 8,685

Liquidity risk

The Company limits its liquidity risk by ensuring bank facilities are available. The Company’s
terms of sales require amounts to be paid on an average of 30 days from the date of sale.
Trade payables are normally settled within 90 days of the date of purchase.

The Company observed an adverse impact on its sales demand due to COVID-19 outbreak.
Management has taken several steps in protecting cash flows through compensating cost
saving measures and reductions to discretionary capital expenditure. Further, the Company
aims to maintain the level of its cash and cash equivalents at an amount sufficient to meet
cash outflows in a range of scenarios.

The table below summarises the maturities of the Company’s undiscounted financial liabilities
at 31 December, based on contractual payment dates and current market interest rates.

Up to one 1-5 More than
2021 year years 5 years Total
RO’000 RO’000 RO’000 RO’000
Lease liabilities 1,345 2,338 1,767 5,450
Short term borrowings 42,123 - - 42,123
Trade and other payables 40,913 2,149 - 43,062
84,381 4,487 1,767 90,635
2020 o tOyC;I’;? yia; ri Mor5eyt:aar2 Total
RO’000 RO’000 RO’000 RO’000
Lease liabilities 1,209 2,110 2,284 5,603
Short term borrowings 44 861 - - 44,861
Trade and other payables 32,302 1,701 - 34,003
78,372 3,811 2,284 84,467
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Financial risk management (continued)

25.5 Capital management

25.6

The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for
other stakeholders and to maintain a commercially defensible capital structure to reduce the
cost of capital. Capital comprises share capital, legal reserve, special reserve and retained
earnings.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of
dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets
to reduce debt. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing
capital during the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is ‘net debt’ divided by total
equity. The Company includes within net debt, short term loans, lease liabilities, trade and
other payables, less cash and short-term deposits.

2021 2020

RO’000 RO’000

Short term loans 42,000 44,731
Lease liabilities (note 12) 4,330 4,275
Trade and other payables (note 21) 43,062 34,003
Less: Bank balances and cash (note 16) (32,906) (41,234)
Net debt 56,486 41,775
Equity 44,096 41,336
Capital and net debt 100,582 83,111
Gearing ratio 1.28 1.01

Fair value estimation

The nominal value less any estimated credit adjustments for financial assets and liabilities
with a maturity of less than one year are assumed to approximate to their fair values. Financial
assets consist of cash and bank balances and trade and other receivables. Financial liabilities
consist of trade and other payables and term loans.

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities at the end of the reporting date are
not materially different from their carrying values.

The fair value of land and buildings was determined by external, independent valuers, having
appropriate recognized professional qualification and experience in location and category of
property being valued. The independent valuers provide the fair value of the company’s land
and building at reporting date based on market approach. The fair value measured has been
categorized as level 3 based on highest and best use.
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26.

27.

Financial risk management (continued)
Fair value estimation (continued)

The following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments
by valuation technique.

Level:1 Quoted) unadjusted (prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

Level:2 Other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded
fair value are observable ,either directly or indirectly ;and

Level:3 Techniques which use inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair
values are not based on observable market data.

The following table presents the non-financial assets for the company that are measured at
fair value:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
At 31 December 2021 RO’000 RO’000  RO’000  RO’000
Land and buildings - - 1,453 1,453
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
At 31 December 2020 RO’000 RO’000 RO’000 RO’000
Land and buildings - - 1,741 1,741

There were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during 2021.

Net assets per share

Net assets per share is calculated by dividing the shareholders’ equity of the company at the
year-end by the number of shares outstanding as follows:

2021 2020
Shareholders’ equity (RO’000) 44,096 41,336
Number of shares outstanding at the end of the reporting period 69,000 69,000
(thousands) (note 17)
Net assets per share (RO) 0.639 0.599

Basic and diluted earnings per share
Basic and diluted earnings per share are calculated by dividing the profit for the year by the
weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year as follows:

2021 2020
Profit for the year (RO’000) 2,760 863
Weighted average number of shares (thousands) 69,000 69,000
Earnings per share - basic and diluted (RO) 0.040 0.013

Since the Company has no potentially dilutive instruments, basic earnings per share and
diluted earnings per share are equal.
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Contingencies and commitments

a)

b)

In December 2015, a civil case, connected to a criminal case initiated against the
former Managing Director and the former Senior Marketing Manager of the Company,
had been filed by a party claiming RO 659,389 from the Company. The case has been
rejected by Primary and appeal courts and has been raised to the Higher Supreme
court. Based upon external legal advice, the Board of Directors consider that the
Company has no legal responsibility in respect of these two cases and, accordingly,
no provision has been made against this claim in the financial statements on the basis
that Management believes the possibility of significant loss to the Company arising is
less than probable.

In previous years, the Company received claims from a major fuel supplier in Oman in
respect of:

Price differential between the international and domestic gasoil prices payable in
respect of fuel supplied during prior years to a customer amounting to approximately
RO 820,000 as per the notification received from the Ministry of Finance by the fuel
supplier. The Company has disputed the claim and considers that the sale was a
domestic fuel sale based upon a notification received from the Ministry of Oil and Gas
in this regard and not an international sale, as contested by the fuel supplier.

RO 846,000 deducted by the Company in previous years from the amounts payable
relating to invoices raised by the fuel supplier. This deduction relates to a transportation
rebate (the rebate) that was not paid to the Company by the fuel supplier relating to
the prior years. The Company believes it is eligible to receive the transportation rebate
during such period.

The fuel supplier has also claimed interest of approximately RO 483,000 in respect of
non-settlement of the above claims by the Company. As at 31 December 2021, the
Company is in the process of formal arbitration with the supplier and management
does not expect significant liability in relation to above claim based on their discussion
and advice from in house and external legal counsel.

Based upon the review of the correspondences with the supplier relating to above two
claims and the opinion of external lawyers and in-house legal counsel, the Company is
constantly monitoring the status of these claims and made a provision of RO 400,000
in the financial statements.
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29.

30.

Contingencies and commitments (continued)

c) The Company guarantees and commitments in the normal course of its business as
follows:

2021 2020

RO’000 RO’000

Bank guarantees and letter of credits 1,959 4,410

Capital commitments 3,226 1,521

5,185 5,931

Financial instruments

The accounting policies for financial assets have been applied to the line items below:

2021 2020
RO’000 RO’000

Assets at amortised costs

Trade and other receivables (excluding prepayments) 57,797 41,681
Cash at bank and in hand 32,906 41,234
90,703 82,915

The accounting policies for financial liabilities have been applied to the line items below:

2021 2020
RO’000 RO’000

Liabilities measured at amortised costs

Trade and other payables 43,062 34,003
Short-term loans 42,000 44,731
85,062 78,734

Segmental information

Management has determined the Company’s operating segments based on the reports
reviewed by the Chief Executive Officer that are used to make strategic decisions.

The Chief Executive Officer identifies operating segments based on a business perspective.
The reportable operating segments derive their revenue primarily from the sale of refined
petroleum products. Retail sales amounting to RO 271.9 million (2020: RO 241.8 million)
represent the most significant component of revenue for the Company.
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31.

32.

Comparative figures

Certain comparative information has been reclassified to conform to the presentation
adopted in the current year financial statements. Such reclassifications are not material and
have not affected previously reported net profit or shareholders’ equity.

Impact of COVID-19 outbreak

The COVID-19 outbreak which had developed rapidly in 2021, with a significant number of
infections, was effectively brought in to control by strict Government measures. However,
the new Covid variants continue to make havoc across the Globe and continue to affect
the economic activity and the Company’s business in various significant ways mainly in the
aviation and commercial business. Depending on the duration of the COVID-19 crisis and
continued negative impact on economic activity, the Company may experience comparatively
lower results than historical trend, depending on the longevity of the pandemic.

The implications of COVID-19 are ongoing and the ultimate outcome of this event is unknown
and therefore the full impact on the Company for events and circumstances that arose after
the reporting date cannot be reasonably quantified at the authorisation date of this financial
statements. The effect of COVID-19 on the Company, when known, will be incorporated into
the determination of the Company’s estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities.
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